
 
April 10, 2020 
 
Dear Indianola Community:  
 
This letter is devoid of much of the professionalism that the good citizens of Indianola should expect from their elected 
officials.  While a direct response to the inaccuracies and misinformation that the Council’s letter dated April 9, 2020, this 
letter is not a formal response from my official Office.  It is not on city letterhead, and should not be construed as such.  
That said, I believe it is important for the citizens of Indianola to understand the arguments made in my veto of the City’s 
budget for the 2021 fiscal year, while addressing the inaccuracies and inconsistencies in not only Council’s letter, but fiscal 
management within the City of Indianola. 
 
To begin, much has been made of the 62% vs 44% fund balance discussion. The 62% figure has even been called deceptive 
by Council.  It’s troublesome that councilmembers want to attack my veto based upon interpretations of definitions, as 
opposed to policy or leadership direction.  Clearly, my veto did not question the Council’s “commitment to serving the 
community” or their “sacred commitment” to constituents, but it did take into consideration the economic impact that the 
present COVID-19 pandemic is having on citizens physically, emotionally, and fiscally.  And it encouraged Council to 
consider policy alternative that would provide relief to taxpayers in this difficult time, while concurrently allowing Council 
to pursue their policy goals.   
 
In my veto, I used the 62% figure because it most accurately indicates from where I suggest any tax relief provided by 
keeping the tax rate the same can be funded.  You’ll see some inconsistencies in how the City refers to this line item below.  
In the table below from the March 2020 budget presentation it is referred to as “General Admin”.  However, in the 
Treasurer’s Report that immediately follows the first table, that same fund is referred to as “General Government”.  There 
are even a different number of funds labeled as “General Fund” between the two documents, with the budget presentation 
showing 14 lines, and the Treasurer’s Report showing nine. Confused? Me too.  Please note in the image below General 
Admin is predicted to be at 62%, by staff’s estimates.  That is the fund to which my veto refers. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Sample of the August Treasurer’s report, presented to Council on 10/21/2019 (why the inconsistencies in language and line 
items?) 

 
Council can dispute what a particular collection of money is called; and I can understand their confusion, but here is 
something that can’t be disputed.  We have over a million dollars available to assist taxpayers in a single fund, that is either 
labeled as General Admin or General Government, depending on the official City document utilized.  That million dollars is 
OVER AND ABOVE the 25% reserve requirement listed in the Council Policy document.  That is over a million dollars 
over an amount that is supposed to be a safety net.  We can access over a million dollars without touching that safety net or 
any other departmental fund balance.   
 
Just so there is a clear understanding, that million dollars is calculated as follows:  The projected ending balance of the 
“General Admin” $1,861,261 per the budget presentation above in less the required reserve of 25% of $3,023,457 
expenditures, which is $755,864.25.  We have $1.8 million when we require $756,000 to be safe.  $1,861,261 less 
$755,864.25, is in fact $1,105,396.75, again over a million dollars. 
 
But Council claims I’m being deceptive and inaccurate, and while I won’t make jokes about a global pandemic like they do, 
I will address the “But you said General Fund!” argument.  Fair enough, we can perform the same mathematical exercise on 
the “General Fund”, as defined in the budget presentation. $14,212,214 x 25%=$3,553,055 in recommended reserves per 
the policy.  We have $6,238,892 projected.  That is reserves in excess of 2.68 million over the recommended reserves. 
 
Let me be absolutely clear: We have access to over a million dollars to help our citizens, and we’ll remain well within the 
25% reserves if Council were to adopt my proposal.   
 
What is my proposal and how much will my proposal “cost” the City of Indianola?  I use quotes on “cost”, because I’m 
proposing a decrease in the amount of tax revenue, not some check the City will be writing.  The city’s taxable valuation is 
$566,827,938 per the published document below.  So how much tax relief am I proposing?  My proposal is 
(566,827,938/1000)*(12.75555-12.38220) = $211,625.  We have $1.1 million given the above calculation, and this would 
reduce tax revenues $211,625.  We could maintain this tax reduction, without needing to change budget spending for OVER 
5 YEARS, just out of one General Admin fund.  (Calculations taken from published budget document and is published 
below.) 
 



 
Which brings me to a vital point.  I’m not suggesting changing ANY spending in the budget, despite Council’s rhetoric in 
their response to my veto.  The same number of police officers would be added, and the same number of library staff would 
be added.  Budget spending would be the SAME.  I am not proposing changing any part of the budget spending for this 
year.  To suggest anything to the contrary is deception by the Indianola City Council. 
 
In closing, please let me reiterate three import facts: 
 

1) We can provide citizens tax relief, without reaching the 25% reserve level, for a period of five (or 12!) years, with 
no change in spending. These projections assume no growth in the tax base, so the actual term could be much 
longer if Council provided the appropriate direction and understood public budgeting. 

 
2) Council notes in their letter that citizens would pay less taxes even with the proposed rate increase.  Indianola 

Public Schools have decreased their tax levy this year.  Leadership and excellent fiscal stewardship isn’t relying on 
other taxing authorities to do the right thing.  The Indianola City Council shouldn’t rely on Indianola Schools to 
provide tax relief in emergency situations.  That is not leadership, it is relying on other taxing authorities to help 
out the citizens of Indianola.  And; 

 
3) Personal attacks notwithstanding, the City of Indianola can afford to do the right thing by the citizens of Indianola 

during this recession, and we should.   
 
By vetoing the budget resolution, I encouraged the Council to reconsider the increased tax rate and find alternative funding 
mechanisms to fund their priorities.  I have identified a path for this to occur, and sincerely hope they consider it without 
dismissing it out of hand. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kelly B. Shaw 
 
 
 
P.S.  The 2019-2020 combined property tax rate for Indianola residents was $39.745, not the $38.46 which Council cited in 
their letter dated April 9, 2020.  We do know small details are important, right?  Maybe, before Council says my numbers 
are “misinformed”, “deceptive”, and “inaccurate”, they should make sure their own numbers do not deceive the citizens.  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
From Warren County Beacon website indicating levy rate of 39.745/1000 of valuation for 2019-2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

From the Council letter dated 4/9/2020 which conveniently excludes the true rate citizens pay. 
 
 
 


